
 

Special Called Meeting Minutes 3.24.15 1 

 

CITY OF PINE LAKE 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING  

ON ANNEXATION  
 

MARCH 24, 2015 
7:00 PM 

 
The informal meeting was called to order by Mayor Kathie deNobriga at 7:02 P.M. Present were Mayor Pro Tem Megan 
Pulsts and Council members Erika Brown and Mike Stuckey.  Absent were Council members George Chidi and Lynn 
Ehrlicher, City Administrator Valerie Caldwell and Chief Saria Y’hudah Green.  
 
The Mayor gave a brief summary of what Michael Shae, Ph. D Intern from Georgia State University will do as he prepares 
for the case study for annexation and that his presence at the meeting was for questions and concerns from the citizens.  
She also stated that Mr. Shae will give a scope of services and annexation issues as it relates to his research and case 
study. 
 
The Mayor stated that there are five (5) possible properties considered for annexation: 

 Dragon Delight Restaurant on Rockbridge Road Property 

 Deans Market and the Strip Mall Property on Rockbridge Road 

 Pine Lake Baptist Church and the two  (2) properties next to the church 

 The property from the Texaco Car Wash, package store and the cell tower 

 Property down to Hariston Road at the intersection of Rockbridge Road 
 

Mayor deNobriga communicated Mr. Shea will investigate revenue generation from taxes in the study.  The church will 
only pay Storm Water taxes due to their tax exempt status.  The Mayor said that there will be a survey available. 
 
Mr. Shea arrived at 7:05 PM and Mayor deNobriga turned the meeting over to him. 
 
Mr. Shea stated that Pine Lake has the lowest residential and commercial ration in the state thus higher taxes. He also 
said that the annexation will make Pine Lake more soluble financially. Mr. Shae will also provide a comparative analysis in 
the study and give objectives of the research.  
 
The floor was open for questions from the audience: 
 

 Sherry Durren, Resident, asked for clarity on the proposed annexation.  She asked about how annexation was 
done and if there was a choice.   

The Mayor replied that there was a three ways to do annexation and that it is very modest with logical borders and gave 
examples. 
 

 Art Hager, Resident, asked how many properties are being considered.  
The Mayor that there were five properties and also plans to increase policing.   
 

 Keith Pasani, Pastor of Pine Lake Baptist Church said that he wants to have an increase of revenue stream for the 
city and that he was not present for a defensive posture.  He asked if there would be a change in sanitation fees, 
mail service, addresses and water shed fees and that it could become very expensive.  Pastor Pasani inquired 
about building facades to buildings and had a list of items for consideration for annexation as following: 

o The parking lot at the church will need to be investigated 
o Building facades  
o Where will the buffer be located 
o Who will pay for the paving of Oak Road 
o Water shed issues  
o The church wanted to do a poll vote  



 

Special Called Meeting Minutes 3.24.15 2 

 

o What will  future annexation be for Pine Lake  
o Will the Church ensue double expense or will it remain the same 
o Who pays for road curb and drainage problems 
 

Mayor deNobriga answered many of the questions.  There was discussion regarding the one (1) foot strip buffer around 
the city. 

 
 Frank Brown, Resident, stated that he has been a resident for ten years and he does not know anyone that is for 

the annexation.  He also said that he against the annexation and has other concerns of the study especially Storm 
Water.  Brown said that policing was not much of an incentive and that the citizen pay more to live in Pine Lake 
than some of the surrounding streets that boarder the city.  He made the comment that many of the businesses 
on Rockbridge Road were not in the best conditions. 
 

 Glen Crisler, Resident, asked will be the benefits of the annexation. 
 

 Sherry Durren inquired about the crimes of Family Dollar and if there will be a chance of improving the culture if 
annexation happen.  

Stuckey said that 15 years ago the city had 24 hour Policing and Code Enforcement that was rigorous until 1999. 

 Pastor Pasani’s concern was also about tax revenues gained from annexation. 
Brown answered that the church would be good for annexation and that the city could provide more services. 
 

 Art Hager communicated that that it makes sense to annex the gap on Rockbridge where the plaza is located but 
not to go too far down Rockbridge Road. 
 

 Augusta Woods, Resident asked if the businesses will lose more of their existing business. Ms. Woods also stated 
her concern of property taxes forcing businesses out of the community. 

The Mayor replied that Shea’s analysis will show the potential impact on properties.  
 

 Kevin Liske, Resident asked if city planning has any references. 
Shea responded that he had a meeting with Public Policy and that there has never been a case study collected and that he 
will utilize the current data base available.  He also said that there is not any other studies available. 
 

 Melanie Hammet, Resident, question the minimum of city properties on Rockbridge Road and stated that 
balance of presence should be a goal especially in the commercial district.  
 

Mr. Shae responded that he was getting a feel for the study and research based on the questions raised regarding what 
the citizens want.  He also said that there will be one on one meetings with the business owners within the next couple 
weeks.  Below are themes that that he will concentrate on: 

o A clear understanding of the pros and cons for the annexation  
o Extra Fees 
o Case study 
o Increase of revenue verses services 
o Identify concerns of the city 

 
 Matthew Pulsts, Resident, said that he was in favor of growth, but was not sure how far down annexation should 

go on Hambrick and Hariston Road.  Mr. Pulsts also stated that the Police Department are patrolling activity in 
the shopping center and pawn shop areas currently. Council member Brown interjected that the package store 
and plaza business owners are aware that the city police have a presence there.  
 

Mayor deNobriga that she was curious to the number of attendees mentioning policing.  She also said that 24/7 policing is 
attractive when it comes to annexation; however, the city is experiencing difficulties finding qualified applicants. The 



 

Special Called Meeting Minutes 3.24.15 3 

 

Mayor informed the audience that it will be the property owners needing to be convenient for the proposed annexation 
not the business owner and that many of them live out of state.   
 

 Pasani asked would Pine Lake be swallowed up should other cities want to annex around the city  
The Mayor replied no, not by another municipality and that the city has had a balanced budget for the last four years and 
that the city is stable not sustainable. Pulsts said that the city would have to give up the charter and that the citizens 
would have to have a vote if this were to occur 
 

 Frank Brown conveyed that during the recession property values did not decline and asked Shea how will the 
annexation affect the current property values. 

Shea responded that the case study will reflect property values.  
 

 Hammett suggested creating a walkable area for the city.  
The undeveloped land owned by the Hogan’s was discussed as possibly a Main Street area. 
 
Mr. Shea will have a draft available to the city for review with key findings regarding the proposed annexation.  The 
information will be placed on listserve and the website and tentative for the April 13th Council Meeting. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

Missye Varner, Administrative Assistant  

 
Approved minutes are posted on the website at http://www.pinelakega.com/city-government/minutes/archive-minutes/ 


